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Contracts 101 
- Roundtable

SO ….. WHAT 
IS A 

CONTRACT? 

 “A promise, or set of promises, which one 
person gives to another in exchange for a 
promise, or set of promises, from the other 
person.”



 “A mutual agreement between two or more 
parties, which results in obligations that the 
courts may enforce.”

 Essentially any exchange of promises 
between two separate parties is a legal 
contract. 
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A contract may be as simple as an offer, an acceptance, 
and a handshake. 

As long as both parties are of sound mind and reached an 
agreement as equals it is considered legally binding

However, written contracts are always more defensible.

All City contracts MUST be in writing.

1. Record of the transaction

2. Clear roles and responsibilities for each 
party 

3. Transparent

And, in case things end up in court, written 
contracts are considered

4.     Best evidence
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Consulting or 
Engineering 

contracts
Construction:

• Canadian 
Construction 
Document 
Committee 
(CCDC)

• National Master 
Specifications 
(NMS)

Purchase Order
Blanket 

Order/Standing 
Offer

 Stage 1 - Prepare the Contract - Identify Your Needs, 
Establish Goals, Set Expectations, & Define Risk

 Stage 2 - Write the Contract
 Stage 3 – Select a Supplier (Procurement Process)
 Stage 4 - Negotiate the Contract
 Stage 5 - Get Approval before Finalizing the Contract
 Stage 6 - Execute the Contract
 Stage 7 - Manage After the Signature - Obligations, 

Auditing, & Renewals
 Stage 8 - Keep up With Amendments & Revisions
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STAGE 1 - PREPARE THE 
CONTRACT - IDENTIFY YOUR 
NEEDS, ESTABLISH GOALS, 
SET EXPECTATIONS, & 

DEFINE RISK

What is the goal that you are trying to achieve?

Take the time to prepare and write down the project 
plan and objectives in advance.  It will help you 
throughout the overall project, regardless of its size 
or value.

 What is the business problem?
 What are we buying?
 What does success look like? 
 What are the risks (contract terms)?
 Is there anything unique about this project?
 What information do bidders need to know?
 Who needs to be involved within the organization? 

Who are your stakeholders?
 Do we want to evaluate something other than 

price?
 What is the Evaluation Plan?
 What do we need the bidders to tell us for the 

Evaluation Plan?
 What is the appropriate procurement method?

STAGE 2 -
WRITING 
THE 
CONTRACT

Top 3 risks
Specs
Indemnity and 

Warranty
Pricing Structure
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 Contract is only as good as the deliverables and specifications in it
 Technical specs – physical description of the item or how the service can be performed
 Functional or Performance specs – describe the quality or performance standards of the goods or 

service
 Integration Points

 What will the good or service interact with?  Who else could be affected by what you want to buy?
 The more integrations, the more complex the project

 Things to consider:
 Is there anything special about this purchase?
 Am I making a one-time purchase, or do I want to be able to buy this for a set length of time?
 Is this a contractual service?  Do I need Liability Insurance or WCB coverage from the contractor?

If you aren’t sure, take the time to talk with internal and external stakeholders to ensure you have the 
specifications right

Warranty

 The Supplier warrants (or ensures) the 
specifications or deliverables are:
 provided in a professional and competent manner by 

persons qualified and skilled in their occupation in 
accordance with: 
 the Contract; 
 Industry Standards; and 
 the Requirements of Law; 

 are free from defects and suitable for the purposes 
intended; and

 will not infringe any patent, copyright or trademark. 
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INDEMNITY AND 
LIABILITY

Indemnity

 The Supplier agrees to “hold harmless” the 
Purchaser from all losses and damages, 
including third-party intellectual property rights, 
third party bodily injury (including death), 
personal injury and property damage, 

 This could directly or indirectly, result from the 
any act or omission of the Supplier

 Basically …..

the Supplier will correct any damages it causes 
while working on the contract.  The Purchaser will 
not be responsible or pay more to solve the 
Supplier’s mistakes.

Ask  yourself whether, or not, you want to do 
business with a Supplier who is unwilling to 
warranty the product that it is selling, or accept 
the cost of its mistakes.

 If that company does not have confidence in its 
own product or service, why should you have 
confidence in the product?

INDEMNITY AND 
LIABILITY
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• Lump Sum
 AKA - Total Price, Flat Fee

• Unit Price

 Cost per item or group of items

• Time (Hourly, Daily, Etc.)

 Cost per unit of time

Contracts must be in 
writing;

Funds must be 
approved; 

Terms and 
conditions must be 
approved within the 
business unit; 

Must include 
standard 
contractual 
requirements for 
your organization; 
and

Must be signed in 
accordance with your 
organizations bylaws 
and policy
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Request for Quotation (RFQ) 
 Invitational or Open
 Evaluation and selection by:

 Low-Bid 
 High-Score 

 Request for Proposal (RFP) 

 No-Negotiation (Contract A –
old school) 

 Consecutive Negotiation 
(NRFP)

 Concurrent Negotiation (BAFO)
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 Request for Supplier Qualifications (RFSQ)

 Prequalification for a single second stage competition. (e.g. 
Contractors to construct a building)

 Roster Framework to join a list of prequalified vendors that have 
signed an agreement governing future work assigned to them

 Invitation to Tender (ITT) 

 Open Competition for the 
procurement of goods, easily 
defined services or construction 
where price is the primary 
consideration. Bid Security and 
irrevocable bids are typically also 
required.

STAGE 3 –
SELECTING A 

SUPPLIER (WAYS 
TO BUY) 
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 When a Negotiated RFP is used, the final contract can be negotiated with the 
successful bidder.  

 Negotiations may be required if any of the following occur:
 The RFP specifications or draft contract may not have been clear. If the 

successful bidder interpreted the specifications or contracts terms differently 
from the organization’s intentions.

 The successful bidder proposed an alternate way to complete the deliverables 
or specifications. Therefore, negotiation may be required to ensure relevant 
clauses in the contract are appropriately revised.

 Details of the successful bidder’s response may be unclear or poorly worded, 
and the organization may wish to negotiate clearer, more precise wording.  The 
response may have been clear enough to evaluate, but not clear enough to 
enforce during contract management.

 Seek the proper approvals before finalizing the 
award.

 Who in your organization has the authority to award 
this contract?
 Obtain their written approval to proceed
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STAGE 6 –
EXECUTE THE 

CONTRACT

 Who has signing authority in your Organization?

 Is there a legal review required before 
signature?
 Follow the process that is outlined for your 

organization

 What is the correct way to amend the contract?
 Change order
 Formal amendment
 Revised Purchase Order

 Who has the approval to sign and amendment?

 Do you need additional approvals prior to finalizing with vendor?
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Review the goods or services 
prior when received
Do they meet the requirements of the 
contract?
If not, what remedies are in the contract?
If they are good, what is the process to 
approve payment or receive goods?  Does 
your organization have a manual or electronic 
process?

Review the invoice for errors or 
discrepancies
Contest any invoices that have errors.  
Consultants are good at hiding extra charges.
Follow your organizations Accounts Payable 
processes to pay accurate invoices promptly.

STAGE 8 -
MANAGE AFTER 
THE SIGNATURE 
- OBLIGATIONS, 
AUDITING, & 
RENEWALS

 Documentation, records retention
 A complete file should contain:

 Approval memos
 Solicitation documents
 Warranties and certifications
 Liability insurance certificates
 Letter of Good Standing from WCB
 Confirmation of milestones and/or 

deliveries
 Documentation from Vendor 

Performance Review (if 
completed)

 Notes from Vendor meetings
 All communications related to the 

contract
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 Diarize the renewal for any multi-term 
contracts.
 Ensure the appointment is far enough 

in advance to complete the renewal 
before the current term ends

 Keep track of which term you are 
currently in.  Don’t get caught without 
a contract because you thought you 
had one more to go.  

If you have followed these steps, you will 
have drafted a strong contract.  You will 
have considered all the possible risks 
during planning stage.  You have a great 
vendor and successful project.  The only 
thing left to do is pay the final invoice and 
take the time to ensure you complete a 
project review to confirm the 
improvements for next time.  There is 
always something we can do better next 
time
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QUESTIONS??

27


